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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– x  
BARBARA SEAMAN, individually on behalf of 
herself and all others similarly situated,   
 
  Plaintiff,     
v.       
        
                                                                
S. MARTINELLI & CO., 
 
                        Defendant.       

: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
:  

 
 
Case No.  

 
 
 
 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– X  
Plaintiff Barabara Seaman (hereinafter “Plaintiff”), individually on behalf of herself and 

all others similarly situated, by her attorneys, allege the following upon information and belief, 

except for those allegations pertaining to Plaintiff, which are based on personal knowledge:  

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This action seeks to remedy the deceptive and misleading business practices of S. 

Martinelli & Co. (hereinafter “Defendant”) with respect to the manufacturing, marketing, and sale 

of Defendant’s Martinelli Apple Juice, One Liter Bottle product (hereinafter the “Product”) 

throughout the state of New York and throughout the country.   

2. Defendant has improperly, deceptively, and misleadingly labeled and marketed its 

Product to reasonable consumers, like Plaintiff, by omitting and not disclosing to consumers on its 

packaging that consumption of the Product may increase the risk of ingesting arsenic.   

3. As described in further detail below, the Product contains Arsenic, which could 

lead to serious and life-threatening adverse health consequences.   
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4. Defendant specifically lists both the active and inactive ingredients of the Product 

on the labeling; however, Defendant fails to disclose that the Product contains, or is at the risk of 

containing, Arsenic. 

5. A representative example of Defendant’s lack of disclosure on the Product is 

depicted below:  
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6. Consumers like Plaintiff trust manufacturers such as Defendant to sell products that 

are safe and free from harmful known substances, including Arsenic.  

7. Plaintiff and those similarly situated (hereinafter “Class Members”) certainly 

expect that the beverage products they purchase will not contain, or risk containing, any knowingly 

harmful substances that cause severe disease and even be life threatening. 

8. Unfortunately for consumers, like Plaintiff, the beverage Product they purchased 

contains Arsenic. 

9. On April 16, 2024, a voluntary recall was started by Defendant.  

10. Defendant’s recall has been a complete and abject failure.  Defendant has made no 

real effort to widely publicize its recall.   

11. The recall requires consumers to return the product to obtain a refund.   

12. Defendant is well aware that many consumers have already used the Product and 

thrown it away. 

13. This recall was deliberately designed to preclude the vast majority of consumers 

from receiving a refund. 

14. The class action remedy is superior to Defendant’s failed recall in every 

conceivable fashion.   

15. Independent testing confirmed and demonstrated the presence of Arsenic in the 

Product.  

16. Defendant is using a marketing and advertising campaign that omits from the 

ingredients lists that the Product contains Arsenic.  This omission leads a reasonable consumer to 

believe they are not purchasing a product with a known carcinogen when in fact they are 

purchasing a product contaminated with Arsenic.   
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17. Defendant’s marketing and advertising campaign includes the one place that every 

consumer looks when purchasing a product – the packaging and labels themselves.  As such, a 

reasonable consumer reviewing Defendant’s label reasonably believes that they are purchasing a 

product that is safe for oral ingestion and does not contain a harmful carcinogen.  Indeed, 

consumers expect the ingredient listing on the packaging and labels to accurately disclose the 

ingredients within the Product.  Thus, reasonable consumers would not think that Defendant is 

omitting that the Product contains, or is at risk of containing, Arsenic. 

18. Defendant’s advertising and marketing campaign is false, deceptive, and 

misleading because the Product does contain, or risks containing, Arsenic, which is dangerous to 

one’s health, well-being, and even life.  Nevertheless, Defendant does not list or mention Arsenic 

anywhere on the Product’s packaging or labeling. 

19. Plaintiff and Class Members relied on Defendant’s misrepresentations and 

omissions of the safety of the Product and what is in the Product when they purchased it. 

20. Consequently, Plaintiff and Class Members lost the entire benefit of their bargain 

when what they received was a beverage product contaminated with a known carcinogen that is 

harmful to consumers’ health.   

21. That is because Defendant’s Product containing, or at risk of containing, a known 

dangerous substance has no value.  

22. As set forth below, beverage products, such as Defendant’s Product, are in no way 

safe for humans and are entirely worthless. 

23. Alternatively, Plaintiff and Class Members paid a price premium for the Product 

based upon Defendant’s marketing and advertising campaign including its false and misleading 

representation and omission on the Product’s label.  Given that Plaintiff and Class Members paid 
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a premium for the Product, Plaintiff and Class Members suffered an injury in the amount of the 

premium paid. 

24. Accordingly, Defendant’s conduct violated and continues to violate, inter alia, 

New York General Business Law §§ 349 and 350.   

25. Plaintiff brings this action against Defendant on behalf of herself and Class 

Members who purchased the Product during the applicable statute of limitations period (the “Class 

Period”). 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

26. Defendant manufactures, markets, advertises, and sells beverage products. 

27. Consumers have become increasingly concerned about the effects of ingredients in 

products that they orally ingest.  Companies, such as Defendant, have capitalized on consumers’ 

desire for beverage products, and indeed, consumers are willing to pay, and have paid, a premium 

for these products. 

28. Consumers lack the meaningful ability to test or independently ascertain or verify 

whether a product contains unsafe substances, such as Arsenic, especially at the point of sale, and 

therefore must and do rely on Defendant to truthfully and honestly report what the Product contains 

or is at risk of containing on the Product’s packaging or labels. 

29. The Product’s packaging does not identify Arsenic.  Indeed, Arsenic is not listed in 

the ingredients section, nor is there any warning about the inclusion (or even potential inclusion) 

of Arsenic in the Product.  This leads reasonable consumers to believe the Product does not contain, 

and is not at risk of containing, Arsenic.    

30. However, the Product contains, or is at risk of containing, Arsenic.  
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31. Independent testing confirmed and demonstrated the presence of Arsenic in the 

Product.  

32. Defendant is a large and sophisticated corporation that has been in the business of 

producing, manufacturing, selling, and distributing beverage products for many years, including 

producing and manufacturing the Product.  

33. Defendant is in the unique and superior position of knowing the ingredients and 

raw materials used in the manufacturing of its Product and possesses unique and superior 

knowledge regarding the manufacturing process of the Product, the manufacturing process of the 

ingredients and raw materials the Product contains, and the risks associated with those processes, 

such as the risk of Arsenic contamination.   

34. Accordingly, Defendant possesses superior knowledge regarding the risks involved 

in the production and manufacturing of its Product.  Such knowledge is not readily available to 

consumers like Plaintiff and Class Members.   

35. Defendant has a duty to provide consumers, like Plaintiff and Class Members, with 

accurate information about the contents of the Product.   

36. Therefore, Defendant’s false, misleading, and deceptive omissions regarding the 

Product containing Arsenic is likely to continue to deceive and mislead reasonable consumers and 

the public, as they have already deceived and misled Plaintiff and the Class Members.  

37. Defendant’s misrepresentation and omission were material and intentional because 

people are concerned with what is in the products that they ingest into their bodies.  Consumers 

such as Plaintiff and the Class Members are influenced by the marketing and advertising campaign, 

the Product’s label, and the listed ingredients.  Defendant knows that if they had not omitted that 
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the Product contained Arsenic, then Plaintiff and the Class would not have purchased the Product 

at all.  

38. Through its deceptive advertising and labeling, Defendant has violated, inter alia, 

NY General Business Law § 392-b by: a) putting upon an article of merchandise, bottle, wrapper, 

package, label, or other thing containing or covering such an article, or with which such an article 

is intended to be sold, or is sold, a false description or other indication of or respecting the kind of 

such article or any part thereof; and b) selling or offering for sale an article which, to its knowledge, 

is falsely described or indicated upon any such package or vessel containing the same, or label 

thereupon, in any of the particulars specified. 

39. Consumers rely on marketing and information in making purchasing decisions. 

40. By omitting that the Product includes Arsenic on the label of the Product throughout 

the Class Period, Defendant knows that those omissions are material to consumers since they 

would not purchase a product with a harmful carcinogen.    

41. Defendant’s deceptive representation and omission are material in that a reasonable 

person would attach importance to such information and would be induced to act upon such 

information in making purchase decisions. 

42. Plaintiff and the Class Members reasonably relied to their detriment on Defendant’s 

misleading representations and omissions. 

43. Defendant’s false, misleading, and deceptive misrepresentation and omission are 

likely to continue to deceive and mislead reasonable consumers and the general public, as they 

have already deceived and misled Plaintiff and the Class Members. 
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44. In making the false, misleading, and deceptive representation and omission 

described herein, Defendant knows and intended that consumers would pay a premium for a 

product marketed without the carcinogen Arsenic over comparable products not so marketed.  

45. As an immediate, direct, and proximate result of Defendant’s false, misleading, and 

deceptive representation and omission, Defendant injured Plaintiff and the Class Members in that 

they: 

a. Paid a sum of money for a Product that was not what Defendant represented; 
 

b. Paid a premium price for a Product that was not what Defendant 
represented; 

 
c. Were deprived of the benefit of the bargain because the Product they 

purchased was different from what Defendant warranted; 
 

d. Were deprived of the benefit of the bargain because the Product they 
purchased had less value than what Defendant represented; 

 
e. Ingested a substance that was of a different quality than what Defendant 

promised; and  
 
f. Were denied the benefit of the properties of the Product Defendant 

promised. 
 

46. Had Defendant not made the false, misleading, and deceptive representation and 

omission, Plaintiff and the Class Members would not have been willing to pay the same amount 

for the Product they purchased and, consequently, Plaintiff and the Class Members would not have 

been willing to purchase the Product. 

47. Plaintiff and the Class Members paid for a Product that does not contain Arsenic.  

Since the Product does indeed contain Arsenic, a harmful carcinogen, the Product Plaintiff and the 

Class Members received was worth less than the Product for which they paid. 

48. Plaintiff and the Class Members all paid money for the Product; however, Plaintiff 

and the Class Members did not obtain the full value of the advertised Product due to Defendant’s 
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misrepresentations and omissions.  Plaintiff and the Class Members purchased, purchased more 

of, and/or paid more for, the Product than they would have had they known the truth about the 

Product.  Consequently, Plaintiff and the Class Members have suffered injury in fact and lost 

money as a result of Defendant’s wrongful conduct. 

49. Plaintiff and Class Members read and relied on Defendant’s representation about 

the benefits of using the Product and purchased Defendant’s Product based thereon.  Had Plaintiff 

and Class Members known the truth about the Product, i.e., that it contains a harmful carcinogen 

(i.e. Arsenic), they would not have been willing to purchase it at any price, or, at minimum, would 

have paid less for it. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

50. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under the Class Action Fairness Act, 28 

U.S.C. section 1332(d) in that: (1) this is a class action involving more than 100 class members; 

(2) Plaintiff is a citizen of the State of New York and Defendant is a citizen of California; and (3) 

the amount in controversy is in excess of $5,000,000, exclusive of interests and costs. 

51. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant conducts 

and transact business in the State of New York, contracts to supply goods within the State of New 

York, and supplies goods within the State of New York. 

52. Venue is proper because Plaintiff and many Class Members reside in the Eastern 

District of New York, and throughout the State of New York.  A substantial part of the events or 

omissions giving rise to the classes’ claims occurred in this District. 
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PARTIES 

Plaintiff 

53. Plaintiff Barbara Seaman is a citizen and resident of Kings County, New York.  

During the applicable statute of limitations period, Plaintiff purchased and used Defendant’s 

Product that contained Arsenic, including a Product that was subject to the recall.  Plaintiff 

purchased Defendant’s Martinelli Apple Juice in New York during the Class Period. 

54. Had Defendant not made the false, misleading, and deceptive representations and 

omissions regarding the contents of the Product, Plaintiff would not have been willing to purchase 

the Product.  Plaintiff purchased, purchased more of, and/or paid more for, the Product than they 

would have had they known the truth about the Product.  The Product Plaintiff received was 

worthless because they contain the known harmful carcinogen, Arsenic.  Alternatively, Plaintiff 

paid a price premium based on Defendant’s false, misleading, and deceptive misrepresentations 

and omissions.  Accordingly, Plaintiff was injured in fact and lost money as a result of Defendant’s 

improper conduct.  

Defendant  

55. Defendant, S. Martinelli & Co., is a California corporation with its principal place 

of business in Watsonville, California.  

56. Defendant manufactures, markets, advertises, and distributes the Product 

throughout the United States.  Defendant created and/or authorized the false, misleading, and 

deceptive advertisements, packaging, and labeling of its Product. 

CLASS ALLEGATIONS 
 

57. Plaintiff brings this matter on behalf of themselves and those similarly situated.  As 

detailed at length in this Complaint, Defendant orchestrated deceptive marketing and labeling 
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practices.  Defendant’s customers were uniformly impacted by and exposed to this misconduct.  

Accordingly, this Complaint is uniquely situated for class-wide resolution.   

58. The Class is defined as all consumers who purchased the Product anywhere in the 

United States during the Class Period.   

59. Plaintiff also seeks certification, to the extent necessary or appropriate, of a subclass 

of individuals who purchased the Product in the state of New York at any time during the Class 

Period (the “New York Subclass”). 

60. The Class and New York Subclass shall be referred to collectively throughout the 

Complaint as the Class. 

61. The Class is properly brought and should be maintained as a class action under Rule 

23(a), satisfying the class action prerequisites of numerosity, commonality, typicality, and 

adequacy because: 

62. Numerosity: Class Members are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable.  Plaintiff believes that there are thousands of consumers in the Class who are Class 

Members as described above who have been damaged by Defendant’s deceptive and misleading 

practices. 

63. Commonality: The questions of law and fact common to the Class Members which 

predominate over any questions which may affect individual Class Members include, but are not 

limited to:  

a. Whether Defendant was responsible for the conduct alleged herein 

which was uniformly directed at all consumers who purchased the Product; 
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b. Whether Defendant’s misconduct set forth in this Complaint 

demonstrates that Defendant has engaged in unfair, fraudulent, or unlawful 

business practices with respect to the advertising, marketing, and sale of its Product; 

c. Whether Defendant made false and/or misleading statements and 

omissions to the Class and the public concerning the contents of its Product; 

d. Whether Defendant’s false and misleading statements and 

omissions concerning its Product were likely to deceive the public; and 

e. Whether Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to money damages under 

the same causes of action as the other Class Members. 

64. Typicality: Plaintiff is a member of the Class.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the 

claims of each Class Member in that every member of the Class was susceptible to the same 

deceptive, misleading conduct and purchased Defendant’s Product.  Plaintiff is entitled to relief 

under the same causes of action as the other Class Members. 

65. Adequacy: Plaintiff is an adequate Class representatives because her interests do 

not conflict with the interests of the Class Members they seek to represent, her consumer fraud 

claims are common to all members of the Class, she has a strong interest in vindicating their rights, 

they have retained counsel competent and experienced in complex class action litigation, and 

counsel intends to vigorously prosecute this action.   

66. Predominance: Pursuant to Rule 23(b)(3), common issues of law and fact identified 

above predominate over any other questions affecting only individual members of the Class.  The 

Class issues fully predominate over any individual issues because no inquiry into individual 

conduct is necessary; all that is required is a narrow focus on Defendant’s deceptive and misleading 

marketing and labeling practices.   
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67. Superiority: A class action is superior to the other available methods for the fair 

and efficient adjudication of this controversy because: 

a. The joinder of thousands of individual Class Members is 

impracticable, cumbersome, unduly burdensome, and a waste of judicial and/or 

litigation resources; 

b. The individual claims of the Class Members may be relatively 

modest compared with the expense of litigating the claims, thereby making it 

impracticable, unduly burdensome, and expensive—if not totally impossible—to 

justify individual actions; 

c. When Defendant’s liability has been adjudicated, all Class 

Members’ claims can be determined by the Court and administered efficiently in a 

manner far less burdensome and expensive than if it were attempted through filing, 

discovery, and trial of all individual cases; 

d. This class action will promote orderly, efficient, expeditious, and 

appropriate adjudication and administration of Class claims; 

e. Plaintiff knows of no difficulty to be encountered in the 

management of this action that would preclude its maintenance as a class action; 

f. This class action will assure uniformity of decisions among Class 

Members;  

g. The Class is readily definable and prosecution of this action as a 

class action will eliminate the possibility of repetitious litigation; 
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h. Class Members’ interests in individually controlling the prosecution 

of separate actions is outweighed by their interest in efficient resolution by a single 

class action; and 

i. It would be desirable to concentrate in this single venue the litigation 

of all Class Members who were induced by Defendant’s uniform false advertising 

to purchase their Product. 

68. Accordingly, this Class is properly brought and should be maintained as a class 

action under Rule 23(b)(3) because questions of law or fact common to Class Members 

predominate over any questions affecting only individual members, and because a class action is 

superior to other available methods for fairly and efficiently adjudicating this controversy. 

CLAIMS 
 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF NEW YORK GBL § 349 

(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the New York Sub-Class) 
 

69. Plaintiff repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, all other paragraphs of 

this complaint. 

70. New York General Business Law Section 349 (“GBL § 349”) declares unlawful 

“[d]eceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any business, trade, or commerce or in the 

furnishing of any service in this state . . .” 

71. The conduct of Defendant alleged herein constitutes recurring, “unlawful” 

deceptive acts and practices in violation of GBL § 349, and as such, Plaintiff and the New York 

Subclass Members seek monetary damages against Defendant, enjoining them from inaccurately 

describing, labeling, marketing, and promoting the Product.   

72. There is no adequate remedy at law. 
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73. Defendant misleadingly, inaccurately, and deceptively advertise and market their 

Product to consumers. 

74. Defendant’s improper consumer-oriented conduct—including failing to disclose 

that the Product has Arsenic —is misleading in a material way in that it, inter alia, induced Plaintiff 

and the New York Subclass Members to purchase Defendant’s Product and to use the Product 

when they otherwise would not have.  Defendant made the untrue and/or misleading statements 

and omissions willfully, wantonly, and with reckless disregard for the truth.   

75. Plaintiff and the New York Subclass Members have been injured inasmuch as they 

purchased a Product that was mislabeled, unhealthy, and entirely worthless.  Accordingly, Plaintiff 

and the New York Subclass Members received less than what they bargained and paid for. 

76. Defendant’s advertising and Product’s packaging and labeling induced Plaintiff and 

the New York Subclass Members to buy Defendant’s Product. 

77. Defendant’s deceptive and misleading practices constitute a deceptive act and 

practice in the conduct of business in violation of New York General Business Law §349(a) and 

Plaintiff and the New York Subclass Members have been damaged thereby. 

78. As a result of Defendant’s recurring, “unlawful” deceptive acts and practices, 

Plaintiff and the New York Subclass Members are entitled to monetary, statutory, compensatory, 

treble and punitive damages, restitution, and disgorgement of all moneys obtained by means of 

Defendant’s unlawful conduct, interest, and attorneys’ fees and costs. 
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF NEW YORK GBL § 350 

(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the New York Sub-Class) 
 

79. Plaintiff repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, all other paragraphs of 

this complaint. 

80. N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law § 350 provides, in part, as follows: 

False advertising in the conduct of any business, trade, or commerce 
or in the furnishing of any service in this state is hereby declared 
unlawful. 

 
81. N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law § 350a(1) provides, in part, as follows: 

The term ‘false advertising, including labeling, of a commodity, or 
of the kind, character, terms or conditions of any employment 
opportunity if such advertising is misleading in a material respect.  
In determining whether any advertising is misleading, there shall be 
taken into account (among other things) not only representations 
made by statement, word, design, device, sound or any combination 
thereof, but also the extent to which the advertising fails to reveal 
facts material in the light of such representations with respect to the 
commodity or employment to which the advertising relates under 
the conditions proscribed in said advertisement, or under such 
conditions as are customary or usual . . .  

 
82. Defendant’s labeling and advertisements contain untrue and materially misleading 

statements and omissions concerning its Product inasmuch as it misrepresents that the Product is 

safe for use and doesn’t list that the Product contains Arsenic. 

83. Plaintiff and the New York Subclass Members have been injured inasmuch as they 

relied upon the labeling, packaging, and advertising and purchased a Product that was mislabeled, 

unhealthy, and entirely worthless.  Accordingly, Plaintiff and the New York Subclass Members 

received less than what they bargained and paid for. 

84. Defendant’s advertising, packaging, and Product’s labeling induced Plaintiff and 

the New York Subclass Members to buy Defendant’s Product. 
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85. Defendant made its untrue and/or misleading statements and representations 

willfully, wantonly, and with reckless disregard for the truth.   

86. Defendant’s conduct constitutes multiple, separate violations of N.Y. Gen. Bus. 

Law § 350. 

87. Defendant made the material misrepresentations described in this Complaint in its 

advertising and on the Product’s packaging and labeling. 

88. Defendant’s material misrepresentations were substantially uniform in content, 

presentation, and impact upon consumers at large.  Moreover, all consumers purchasing the 

Product were and continue to be exposed to Defendant’s material misrepresentations. 

89. As a result of Defendant’s recurring, “unlawful” deceptive acts and practices, 

Plaintiff and New York Subclass Members are entitled to monetary, statutory, compensatory, 

treble and punitive damages, restitution, and disgorgement of all moneys obtained by means of 

Defendant’s unlawful conduct, interest, and attorneys’ fees and costs. 

JURY DEMAND 
 

 Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 
 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and the Class, prays for judgment as follows: 

(a) Declaring this action to be a proper class action and certifying Plaintiff as the representative 

of the Class under Rule 23 of the FRCP; 

(b) Awarding monetary damages and treble damages;  

(c) Awarding statutory damages allowable under pertinent state law; 

(d) Awarding punitive damages; 

(e) Awarding Plaintiff and Class Members their costs and expenses incurred in this action, 
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including reasonable allowance of fees for Plaintiff’s attorneys, experts, and 

reimbursement of Plaintiff’s expenses; and  

(f) Granting such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper. 

 

Dated:  May 31, 2024  
 
 
 
SULTZER & LIPARI, PLLC 
    
By: Jason P. Sultzer /s/   
_______________________________ 
Jason P. Sultzer, Esq. 
Philip J. Furia, Esq. 
85 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 200 
Poughkeepsie, NY 12601 
Tel: (845) 483-7100 
Fax: (888) 749-7747 
sultzerj@thesultzerlawgroup.com 
furiap@thesultzerlawgroup.com 

  
 Attorneys for Plaintiff & the Putative Class 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff(s)

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

CLERK OF COURT

Eastern District of New York

BARBARA SEAMAN, individually on behalf of herself
and all others similarly situated

S. MARTINELLI & CO.

S. MARTINELLI & CO.
735 W BEACH STREET
WATSONVILLE, CA 95076

Sultzer & Lipari, PLLC
Jason P. Sultzer, Esq.
85 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 200
Poughkeepsie, NY 12601
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

0.00
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Citizen or Subject of a 3 3 Foreign Nation 6 6
Foreign Country

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES

110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY 625 Drug Related Seizure 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 375 False Claims Act
120 Marine 310 Airplane 365 Personal Injury  - of Property 21 USC 881 423 Withdrawal 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 
130 Miller Act 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729(a))
140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 367 Health Care/ 400 State Reapportionment
150 Recovery of Overpayment 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS 410 Antitrust

& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 820 Copyrights 430 Banks and Banking
151 Medicare Act 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 830 Patent 450 Commerce
152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability 368 Asbestos Personal 835 Patent - Abbreviated 460 Deportation

Student Loans 340 Marine Injury Product New Drug Application 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) 345 Marine Product Liability 840 Trademark Corrupt Organizations

153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY LABOR 880 Defend Trade Secrets 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits 350 Motor Vehicle 370 Other Fraud 710 Fair Labor Standards Act of 2016 (15 USC 1681 or 1692)

160 Stockholders’ Suits 355 Motor Vehicle 371 Truth in Lending Act 485 Telephone Consumer
190 Other Contract Product Liability 380 Other Personal 720 Labor/Management SOCIAL SECURITY Protection Act
195 Contract Product Liability 360 Other Personal Property Damage Relations 861 HIA (1395ff) 490 Cable/Sat TV
196 Franchise Injury 385 Property Damage 740 Railway Labor Act 862 Black Lung (923) 850 Securities/Commodities/

362 Personal Injury - Product Liability 751 Family and Medical 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) Exchange
Medical Malpractice Leave Act 864 SSID Title XVI 890 Other Statutory Actions

REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS 790 Other Labor Litigation 865 RSI (405(g)) 891 Agricultural Acts
210 Land Condemnation 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: 791 Employee Retirement 893 Environmental Matters
220 Foreclosure 441 Voting 463 Alien Detainee Income Security Act FEDERAL TAX SUITS 895 Freedom of Information
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 442 Employment 510 Motions to Vacate 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff Act
240 Torts to Land 443 Housing/ Sentence or Defendant) 896 Arbitration
245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations 530 General 871 IRS—Third Party 899 Administrative Procedure
290 All Other Real Property 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION Act/Review or Appeal of

Employment Other: 462 Naturalization Application Agency Decision
446 Amer. w/Disabilities - 540 Mandamus & Other 465 Other Immigration 950 Constitutionality of

Other 550 Civil Rights Actions State Statutes
448 Education 555 Prison Condition

560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of 
Confinement

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
1 Original

Proceeding 
2 Removed from

State Court
3 Remanded from

Appellate Court 
4 Reinstated or

Reopened
5 Transferred from

Another District
(specify)

6 Multidistrict
Litigation - 
Transfer

8  Multidistrict
Litigation -
Direct File

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Brief description of cause:

VII. REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. 

DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: Yes No

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY (See instructions):

JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER

DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

26 USC 7609

INTELLECTUAL

BARBARA SEAMAN, individually on behalf of herself and all 
others similarly situated

Kings County

S. MARTINELLI & CO.

✖

✖

✖

✖

28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)

VIOLATION OF NEW YORK GBL § 349 and § 350

$5,000,000.00

✖

✖

✖

05/31/2024
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY
Local Arbitration Rule 83. provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.

I, __________________________________________, counsel for____________________________, do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is ineligible for
compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s): 

monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,

the complaint seeks injunctive relief,

the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIII on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule  in Section VIII on the front of this form. Rule provides that “A civil case is “related” to another
civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a substantial saving of 
judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule  provides that “ A civil case shall not be deemed “related” to another 
civil case merely because the civil case involves identical legal issues, or the same parties.” Rule further provides that
“Presumptively, and subject to the power of a judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph ( ), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are still pending
before the court.”

1.) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County?  Yes   No

2.) If you answered “no” above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County? Yes No

b) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? Yes No

c) If this is a Fair Debt Collection Practice Act case, specify the County in which the offending communication was
received:______________________________.

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or
Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or 
Suffolk County?___________________________________

(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts). 

BAR ADMISSION

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.

Yes     No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?

Yes     (If yes, please explain No

I certify the accuracy of all information provided above.

Signature: ____________________________________________________

Jason P Sultzer Plaintiff and The Class

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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